DEVESH PAREKH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ‘(
INDIA

1 INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To
The Members of
Kaeros Research Private Limited

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kaeros Research Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31. 2025, the Statement of Protitand o
(including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements. includmg a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 1o us “the
{inancial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations aiven 1o us. the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 2013 (7 the Act )
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules.2015, as amended, (*Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the profit and total comprehensinve
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Audinno
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial siatements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Frines sssaed by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the cthical requirements that
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of’ the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obramed
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicablc to the Company
as it is an unlisted company.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis.

Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report. Corporate Governance and Sharcholder s
Information. but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibility is 1o read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the At
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income. changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with Ind AS and other accounting principles senerally aceepied
in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies:
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design. implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement.
whether due to fraud or error.

[n preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable. matters related 10 voin
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Dircctors ¢ither i

to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do <o,

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 4 whole
are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgment and mamtain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether duc
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those risks. and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Fhe risk ol
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations.
or the override of internal control.
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we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertamin caiais
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company s abiliny 1o
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statcnenis
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions arc based v
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, [uture events o
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements. including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that. indi idually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative tactors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters. the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable.
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance. we determine those matiers that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when. in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
I. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that;

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books,




c)

d)

g)

h)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Inconmie
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report ar
in agreement with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31. 2025,
taken on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls. refer 10 our
separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls oy
financial reporting..

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. the provisions ol Sec 197(16) arc
not applicable to the company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended m our opmion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the Investor Tducation and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, 1o the best of its knowledee and beliet. other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts. no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantec. security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The management has represented. that, to the best of its knowledge and beliet. other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts. no funds have been received by the
company from any person(s) or entitv(ies). including forcign entities (“Funding
Parties”). with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly. lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (U ltimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behall of the Uit




Vi,

¢) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 1o believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention ol
the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Based on our examination which included test checks. the company has used an
accounting software system for maintaining its books of account for the financial \car
ended March 31, 2025, which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software systems. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come aCTOSS
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™). issucd by the
Central  Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act. we give in the
“Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 1o the
extent applicable.

For Devesh Parekh & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm’sr

Partner

Membership number: 092160
UDIN: 3€8 92160 g3 as1Y

Place: Delhi

istration number: 0013338N
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vesh Parekh

Date ; 20.05.2025



DEVESH PAREKH & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS \

INDIA

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph I(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” seetion of
our report to the Members of Kaeros Research Private Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of KAEROS
RESEARCH PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025. in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteri
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design. implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensurimg
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including adherence to respective Company ‘s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ~Guidance
Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with cthical requirement:
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate el
financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and mamtained and i ek
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the imernal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment.
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained. is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements of
the Company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed 1o
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail.
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company: (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receIpls
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorization. o
management and directors of the Company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition. use. or disposition of the Company s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference 1o tinancial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls.
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 1o future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies o
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

[n our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o s (e
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls svstem with reterence to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference o financial <tarements v
operating effectively as at March 31. 2025, based on the internal control with reference 1o linancial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of mternal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportine
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Devesh Parekh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 013338N

&bﬁm&%

Devesh Parekh
Partner

Membership number: 092160 5
UDIN: €292 160 BMLnTITLCASLY

Place: New Delhi
Date: 20" May 2025



DEVESH PAREKH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS “
INDIA

ANNEXURE “B” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

L}

(Referred to in Paragraph 2° under the heading of “Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the company and
the books of accounts and records examined by us in the normal course of audit. we state that:

i.  In respect of the Company’s property, plant & equipment:
(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including
quantitative details and situation of property. plant and equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars ol Intangible
Assets.
(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets have been physically ventied

by the management according to the program of periodical verification in phased
manner, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its Property, Plant and Equipment. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification

(c) The company does not have any immovable properties. Therefore. the provisions of
Clause (i)(c) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) Based on the information and explanation provided to us. no proceedings have been

initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31. 2025 tor
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. a) We have been explained by the management that the inventory has been physically
verified at reasonable intervals and the procedures of physical verification ol iventory
followed by the management are reasonable in relation to the size of the Company and
nature of its business. According to information and explanations given to us. the
material discrepancies, if any, noticed on such physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were properly dealt within the books of accounts,
Discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were not
noticed. .

b) According to the information and explanations given to us. the company has been
sanctioned working capital limits against security of current assets in excess of five
crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions. Based upon the audit
procedure performed by -us, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company
with such banks or financial institutions are materially in agreement with the books of
account of the Company.

iii. The Company has during the year. not made investments. provided any guaranice of
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans. secured or unsecured. o
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly. the
provisions of clauses 3(iii) (a) to () of the Order are not applicable.

iv. According to the information and explanation given to us. the company has no loans.
investments, guarantees or security where provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are to be complied with, '
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b)

b)

¢)

d)

e)

a)

b)

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us. the
Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed 10 be deposits
under the directives of the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 1o 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 and the rules framed
thereunder, where applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order arc
not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief. the provisions of sub-section (1) of Section 118
of the Act, for maintenance of cost records are not applicable 10 the company
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given 10 us and on the basis of
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund. employees™ state insurance. incone
tax, goods and service tax, custom duty, cess and any other material statutory dues with
the appropriate authorities to the extent applicable and further there were no undisputed
statutory dues payable for a period of more than six months from the date they become
payable as at March 31, 2025.

According to the records and information and explanations given to us. there are no dues
in respect of income tax, sales tax. service tax, goods and service tax. duty of excise.
duty of custom and value added tax that have not been deposited on account of any
dispute

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have heen
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our exanmation
of records, the Company has not defaulted on repayment of loans or other borrow e o
in the payment of Interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given 1o us and based on our exantination
of records, the company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or other lender government or any government authority .

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of records, no term loans were availed by the company during the year. A ceordingly. the
provisions of this clause of the Order are not applicable

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of records, funds raised on short term basis have. prima facie. not been used during the
year for long-term purposes by the Com pany.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of records, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. associates. or joint ventures

According to the information and explanation given 1o us and based on our examination
of records, the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securitios
held in its Subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of records, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of records, during the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and

#Pajh}*ng under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable



. &)
b)
¢)

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv,

XV.

Xvi, a)
b)
¢)
d)

XVii.

Xviii.

Xix.

According to the information and explanation given to us. no material fraud by the
company or no material fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the
year

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the yvear and up to the date ol
audit report.

According to the information and explanation given 1o us, no whistle-hlow er complainiy,
received during the year by the company and up o the date of audit repont

The Company is not a Nidhi company: accordingly, provisions of the (lause 3(xii) (a) 1o
(¢) of the Order is not applicable to the company

According to the information and explanations given to us. we are of the opinion that all
transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements etc., as required by the Accounting Standards and the
Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us. the company is not required
to have any internal audit system as per the provisions of Section 138 of the ( ompanics
Act 2013,

According to the information and explanations given to us. we are of the opmion that the
company has not entered any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of records, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence. reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a) of the Order
is not applicable,

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of records, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of records, the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence. reporting under clause xvi)(¢)
of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given 1o us and based on our examination
of records, there are no core investment companies within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions. 2016).

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audi
procedures conducted we are of opinion that the company has no cash losses in the
financial year, however, there were cash losses in the immediately preceding linancial
year,

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the vear. However. there
were no issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
ment of financial liabilities, other information accompanving  the



XX.

standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the o\ idence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that company is
incapable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We. however. state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one vear
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall
due

The provisions of Section 135 towards corporate social responsibility are not apphcable
on the company. Accordingly. the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order is no
applicable.

For Devesh Parekh & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration nurﬁz:‘O-OBBBN
RSP ra it
L]

vesh Parekh

Partner

Membership number: 092160

UDIN: 96042160 BR (1 TTC4 Y

Place: Delhi

Date: 20.05.2025



KAEROS RESEARCH PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR in lacs, unless mentioned otherwise)

. R As at As at As at
ki Note  Mareh 31,2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 47.94 3845 -
(c) Investment Property 4 106.64 106.64 106.64
(d) Right-of-use asset 5 123.00 150.31 -
(e} Intangible assets 6 (a) 10.55 4.49 -
() Intangible assets under development 6 (b) - 1.00 0.58
(g) Financial assets
(1) Other financial assets 7 0.18 - -
(h) Deferred tax assets (net) 30 - 4,02 0.12
Total non-current assets 288.31 304.91 107.33
2 Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 383.02 54.83 -
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 9 957.45 352,77 -
(i) Trade receivables 10 22520 58.51 -
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 0.40 3.60 20.26
(c) Income tax assets (net) 12 19.52 - -
(d) Other current assets 13 57.00 18.97 (0.00)
Total current assets 1,642.59 488.68 20.26
Total assets 1,930.90 793.59 127.59
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 14 478.00 478.00 128.00
(b) Other Equity 15 265.81 (26.47) (6.35)
Total equity 743.81 451.53 121.65
LIABILITIES
1 Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Lease liabilities 17 105.23 130,00 -
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 30 7.20 - -
(¢} Provisions 21(a) 2.48 - -
Total non-current liabilities 114.91 130.00 -
2 Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 62,75 - E
(i1) Lease liabilities 17 24.76 22,76 -
{ii1) Trade Payables 18
(A) total outstanding due of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 11.46 4 &
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises, 913.99 120.08 0.69
(1v) Other financial liabilities 19 55.49 4507 -
(b) Other current liabilities 20 3.62 24.16 5.25
(c) Provisions 21(b) 0.11 - -
Total current liabilities 1,072.18 212.06 5.94
Total equity and liabilities 1,930.90 793.59 127.59
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements,
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KAEROS RESEARCH PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR in lacs, unless mentioned otherwise)

i Not Year ended Year ended
Al - March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 22 3,000.57 49.58
Other Income 23 39.74 7.81
Total Income 3,040.31 57.39
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 24 2,607.30 54.11
Changes in inventories of finished goods 25 (108.86) (9.63)
Employee benefits expense 26 63.20 11.97
Finance Costs 27 19.17 551
Depreciation and amortization expense 28 32.82 11.72
Other expenses 29 70.86 7.73
Total expenses 2,684.49 81.42
Profit before tax 355.82 (24.03)
Tax Expenses

- Current Tax 52.32 -

- Deferred Tax 30 11.22 (3.90)
Total Tax Expenses 63.54 (3.90)
Profit for the period 292.28 (20.13)
Total comprehensive income for the period (net of tax) 292.28 (20.13)
Earnings per equity share
Basic earnings per share 31 6.11 (0.83)
Diluted earnings per share 6.11 (0.83)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
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KAEROS RESEARCH PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

{All amounts in INR in lacs, unless mentioned otherwise)

(A) Equity share capital

{1) Current reporting period

i, e e | i, | Rt B 10 |Chaags i ity e ot i e o 6 b cdf e
period 01-04-2024 | prior period items reporting period ¥rar 31-03.2025

Equity share capital 478.00 - 478.00 - 478.00

{2) Previous reporting period

— o corrnt egorig | save ot e 1| b oo a8 i squity shae capial durin thecuren | P44 st
period 01-04-2023 prior period items reporting period JRn 31-03-2025

uity share ital 128.00 - 128.00 350.00 478.00

IIEMM]

Particulars '—R-‘;':—t-.“;ﬁi"!— Total Other Equity

|Balance at April 1, 2023 (6.35) (6.35)

Profit for the year (20.13) (20.13)}

Total comprehensive income for the period (20.13) (20.13

Balance at March 31, 2024 (26.48) (26.48) |

Balance at April 1, 2023 (26.48) (26.48)

Profit for the year 292.28 29228

Total comprehensive income for the period 292.28 292.28

Illalnnct at March 31, 2025 265.80 265.80

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
Summary of material accounting policies
Notes to Financial Statement

As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith

For DEVESH PAREKH & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. - 013338N

Dleccerede

DEVESH PAREKH
Partner
Membership No.- 092160

Place : Delhi
Date: 20.05.2025
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KAEROS RESEARCH PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR in lacs, unless mentioned otherwise)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
(A) Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net profit/{loss) before tax 355.82 (24.03)
Adjustment on account of

- Depreciation 34.34 11.72
- Amortization of Financial Guarantee Fees 10.72 -

- Interest on lease liabilities 11.87 5.50
- Gain on sale of mutual funds (5.18) (5.04)
- Interest on FD (0.06) -
- Net gain on fair value changes of in (34.53) (2.77)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 373,00 (14.61)
Adjustments for

- (Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets (0.18) -

- (I VD in inv ies (328.19) (54.83)
- (Increase)/Decrease in other current assets 0.74 (18.96)
- Increase/{ Decrease) in provisions 2.59 =

- Increase/(Decrease) in trade receivables (166.69) (58.51)
-1 (D ) in trade payabl 805.38 119.39
- Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilitics (39.58) 45.07
- Increase/{ Decrease) in other current liabilities (20.54) 18.91
Cash generated from operations 626.53 36,45
Less: Income tax paid (71.85) -
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 554.68 36.45
(B) Cash Flow From Investing Activities

- Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible asset and intangible asset under development (21.58) (43.72)
- Interest received 0.06 -

- Sale of investments 239,86 355.04
- Purchase of investments (804.85) (700.00)
Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities (B) (586.51) (388.68)|
(C) Cash Flow From Financing Activities

- Proceeds from issue of share capital, net of transaction cost - 350.00
- Repayment of lease liabilities (34.62) (14.43)
- Proceeds from short-term borrowing 63.25 -
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C) 28.63 335,57
Net increase/ (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (3.20) (16.65)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period 3.60 20.25
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period 0,40 3.60
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

X Year ended Year ended As at
pattiniary March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 1,2023
Balances with banks

On current accounts 0.01 2.68 20.25
Cash on hand 0.39 0.91 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 0.40 3.60 20.25
Notes :
1) The Statement of cash flow has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' set out in IND AS 7 'Statement of
2) Changes in liabilities arising from financial
activities
Particulars 0'”;'?;::::;:“ 2 Cashflows (net) Ind AS adjustment Chamjllh;;:::: ;;.: ;
Borrowings - 63.25 0.50 62.75
Lease liabilities 152.76 (34.62) (11.87) 129.99
Total Liabilities from financing activities 152.76 28.63 (11.37) 192,74
Particulars Opmli:lf;::;:;;“ o, Cashflows (net) Ind AS adjustment CIuSInglh;;:::; ;;;:
Borrowings . - - -
Lease liabilitics - (14.43) (167.18) 152.76
Total Liabilities from financing activities - (14.43) (167.18) 152.76
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone fi 1l stat
5 y of ial ing policies 1-2
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Kaeros Research Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.1

2.2,

(a)

(b)

Corporate Information

Kaeros Research Private Limited (“The Company™) (CIN: U73100DL2019PTC359563) is a private Company
domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The registered office of
the Company is located at UG 8,9 Plot No A 2/3, Lusa Tower, Naniwala Bagh, Azadpur, Delhi-110033. The
company is involved in to carry on research and development for agro-chemicals of all type including fertilizers,
Micro - nutrients, pesticides, insecticides, veterinary, livestock feeds, feed supplements, fish feeds, etc. and to
manufacture and trading of all types of insecticides.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 20,
2025.

Material accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of
the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) as amended thereafter and other relevant provision of the Act.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). These financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2025 are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS, Refer to
note 34 for information on how the Company adopted Ind AS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

(a) Plan assets of defined employee benefit plans, and
(b) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments)

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company's functional
currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of material accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification

The Company segregates assets and liabilities into current and non-current categories for presentation in the
balance sheet after considering its normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS 1, “Presentation of
Financial Statements™. For this purpose, current assets and liabilities include the current portion of non-current
assets and liabilities respectively. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group has identified period up to twelve months as its operating cycle.
Revenue recognition

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its
revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the
customer.

Revenue is stated exclusive of Goods and Service Tax (GST).

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from
contracts with customers are provided in Note 32




Kaeros Research Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.
Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer
which is usually on shipment. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration,
adjusted for volume discounts, rebates, scheme allowances, price concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as
specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the
government. Accruals for discounts/incentives and returns are estimated (using the most likely method) based
on accumulated experience and underlying schemes and agreements with customers. Due to the short nature of
credit period given to customers, there is no financing component in the contract.

Contract balances

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in
section (k) financial instruments.

(c)  Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if
capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Such cost includes
the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if
the recognition criteria are met. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book
value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. In respect of additions to /deletions from the
property, plant and equipment, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of
addition/ deletion of the assets.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
certain items of plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.
Depreciation on remaining items of property, plant & equipment has been provided on Straight Line Method
based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. . Furthermore, the
Company considers climate-related matters, including physical and transition risks. Specifically, the Company
determines whether climate-related legislation and regulations might impact either the useful life or residual
values.

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of Tangible Assets Useful Life (years)
Plant & Equipment 10-15

Furniture, Fixtures &Equipment 10

Office Equipment 5

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.
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(d)

(e)

Investment Properties

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its investment property as recognised in
its Indian GAAP financial statements as deemed cost at the transition date, viz., 1 April 2023.

Investment properties are properties held for rental income, capital appreciation or the purpose of future use is
not yet determined by the management as of the reporting date. Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset
will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in Statement of profit and loss
as incurred.

Investment properties are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Though the Company measures investment properties using cost-based measurement,
the fair value of investment properties are disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on the
evaluation performed by the management based on the acceptable valuation method.

Investment properties are de-recognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the
net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the Statement of profit and
loss in the period of de-recognition.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties only when there is a change in use. Transfers between
investment property, owner-occupied property and inventories do not change the carrying amount of the
property transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets with finite life are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised
and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure
forms part of carrying value of another asset,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as
an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate technical and commercial feasibility of making the asset
available for use or sale.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when
development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected future
benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms
part of carrying value of another asset.

FRN:13338N

Delhi
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A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:-

Intangible assets Useful Life (years) Amortization method used

Computer Software 8 Amortized on straight-line basis
Websites 2 Amortized on straight-line basis
Patents, trademarks and designs 10 Amortized on straight-line basis

(H) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

a) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

b) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

c) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

(g) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
(CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. Where
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
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(h)

written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken
into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful
life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase.

The Company assesses whether climate risks, including physical risks and transition risks could have a
significant impact. If so, these risks are included in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value-in-use amounts.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

A lease is a contract that contains right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

The Company has lease contracts for various items of land, office premises, warehouses and vehicles.
i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the underlying
assel is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Nature of Right-of-use assets Depreciation period
Factory premises 3-10 years

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (g)
Impairment of non-financial assets.

The Right-of-use assets are presented as separate line item in the balance sheet.
ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilitics measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
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purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments.

The lease liabilities are presented as separate line item in the balance sheet under financial liabilities.
(i) Inventories

The items of inventories are measured at cost after providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost of inventories
comprise of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and appropriate portion of variable and fixed proportion
overheads and such other costs incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition.
Fixed production overheads are based on normal capacity of production facilities.

Packing materials and raw materials are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. However, the aforesaid
items are not valued below cost if the finished products in which they are to be incorporated are expected to be
sold at or above cost.

Semi-finished products, finished products and by-products are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

Cost of raw material, process chemicals, stores and spares packing materials, trading and other products are
determined on weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(i)  Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance
sheet and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or
a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will
arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the financial
statements.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. w N
L.
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(k)

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. All
trade receivables do not contain a significant financing component and are measured at transaction price.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

a) Debt instruments at amortised cost

b) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

¢) Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
d) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade receivables, security deposits & other receivables.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has
retained.
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(m)

(m)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and other financial liabilities.
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

If the holding company recognise the corporate guarantee fees on account of corporate guarantee provided to
any lender/banks/financial institution for extending credit facility to the Company, latter shall make mirror
entries in its books of accounts.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equit; urrent tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
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transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences

b) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with interests in joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred fax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Company relies on the same forecast assumptions
used elsewhere in the financial statements and in other management reports, which, among other things, reflect
the potential impact of climate-related development on the business, such as increased cost of production as a
result of measures to reduce carbon emission.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of Profit and Loss is recognised outside Statement
of Profit and Loss (in other comprehensive income). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in Statement of Profit and Loss or in OCI.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance is a defined contribution scheme established under a State Plan.
The contributions to the scheme are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year when employee
rendered related services.
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(q)

(r)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of
service gets a gratuity on post-employment at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of
service as per the rules of the Company. The aforesaid liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of the financial year. The scheme is funded with an
insurance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

The Company has other long-term employee benefits in the nature of leave encashment. The liability in respect
of leave encashment is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made
at the end of the financial year. The aforesaid leave encashment is unfunded.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in the net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in OCI in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment reporting

Based on "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates the resources based on an
analysis of various performance indicators by business segments. Inter segment sales and transfers are reflected
at market prices. The Company has identified the Managing Director as the CODM who assesses the financial
performance and makes strategic decisions.

Climate-related matters

The Company considers climate-related matters in estimates and assumptions, where appropriate. This
assessment includes a wide range of possible impacts on the Company due to both physical and transition risks.
Even though the Company believes its business model and products will still be viable after the transition to a
low-carbon economy, climate-related matters increase the uncertainty in estimates and assumptions
underpinning several items in the financial statements. Even though climate-related risks might not currently
have a significant impact on measurement, the Company is closely monitoring relevant changes and
developments, such as new climate-related legislation.
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3 Property. Plant and Equipment

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block |
Deseription Opening as at| Additions |I.'l[spnaals Assets held for |Closing as at Opening as at{Additions  |Disposals Closing as at Asat As at
1 April 2024 Isale 31 March 2025 1 April 2024 31 March 2025 March 31,2025|  March 31,2024
Plant & Machmery 36.70 7.02 - - 43.72 0.22 259 - 2.82 40.90 36.48
Office Equipments 0.07 0.49 - 0.56 0.00 0.09 0.09 047 0.07
Computers 1.51 4.54 - - 6.05 0.05 1.23 - 1.28 478 146
Fumiture and fixtures 045 1.48 - - 1.92 0.00 0.13 0.13 1.79 045
Total 38.73 13.53 - - 52.26 0.28 4.04 - 4.32 47.94 38.45
Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block
Description Opening as at|Additions Disposals  |Assets held for |Closing as at Opening as at|Additions |Dispnuls Closing as at As at As at
1 April 2023 sale 31 March 2024 1 April 2023 31 March 2024 March 31,2024 April 1,2023
Plant & Machinery - 36.70 - - 36.70 - 022 - 0.22 36.48 =
Office Equipments = 0.07 - - 0.07 - 0.00 - 0.00 0.07 -
Computers - 1.51 - - 1.51 - 0.05 - 0.05 1.46 -
Furniture and fixtures - 0.45 - - 0.45 - 0.00 - 0.00 0.45 -
Total - 38.73 - - 38.73 - 0.28 - 0.28 38.45 =
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4

Investment Properties

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block
Descrition Opening as at | Additions Disposals  |Closing as at Opening as at  |Additions |Disposals  |Closing as at As at As at
- 1 April 2024 31 March 2025 |1 April 2024 31 March 2025 March 31, 2025| March 31, 2024
Land 106.64 - 106.64 - - - - 106.64 106.64
Total 106.64 - 106.64 - - - - 106.64 106.64
Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block
Description Opening as at | Additions Disposals  |Closing as at Opening as at |Additions |Disposals |Closing as at As at As at
1 April 2023 31 March 2024 |1 April 2023 31 March 2024 March 31,2024]  April 1, 2023
Land 106.64 - 106.64 - - - - 106.64 106.64
Total 106.64 - 106.64 - - - - 106.64 106.64

All title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of Company.
The Company has not recognised any amount in statement of profit and loss for investment properties.

Particulars A

Property at Khasra No.1707 49.57
Property at Khasra No.1709 | 3845
Property at Khasra No.1709 2 18.63
Total 106.64

The intended purpose of acquisition of the said property is to conduct the “Field Trial of new Products” or “Establishment of Factory™.

the Factory.

The management has also evaluated the option to sell the mentioned property upon receipt of appreciated value, therefore it is undeterminable whether the property be use for business or sell.

Fair Value:

The fair value of investment property has been determined by the management using the
property can be sold in an active market. The Company has not used the services of a

valuation of the investment property.

NS

However, management is also looking for other strategic locations for

prevailing circle rates applicable to the same location and are considered to be a fair representation at which such
registered valuer in accordance with rule 2 of Companies (Registered valuer and valuation) Rules, 2017) for the
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5 Right-of-Use Assets

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION NET CARRYING AMOUNT
Description of Balance as at Additions / Disposal / Balance as at Balance as at Depreciation Disposal / Balance as at As at As at
Assets April 01, 2024 | Modifications during | Derecognition during | March 31,2025 | April 01, 2024 expense Derecognized March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
the year the year during the year
Factory premises 161.68 - - 161.68 11.37 27.31 - 38.68 123.00 150.31
Total 161.68 - - 161.68 11.37 27.31 - 38.68 123.00 150.31
GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION NET CARRYING AMOUNT
Description of Balance as at Additions / Disposal / Balance as at Balance as at Depreciation Dispaosal / Balance as at As at As at
Assets April 01, 2023 | Modifications during Derecognition during | March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023 expense Derecognized March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
the year the year during the year
Factol ises - 161.68 - 161.68 - 11.37 - 11.37 150.31 -
Total - 161.68 - 161.68 - 11.37 - 11.37 150.31 -
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6 (@)

6(b)

Intangible assets
Gross Block Aceumulated Depreciation Net Block |
Description Opening as at Add Disp Closing as at Opening as at Additions Disposals Closing as at As at Asat
1 April 2024 31 March 2025 1 April 2024 31 March 2025 March 31, 202 200
Comm Software 0.24 518 = 542 0.00 0.36 - 0.37 5.05 024
Trademarks & Registrations 433 2.35 - 6.68 0.07 110 - 118 5.50 425
Total 4.57 7.53 = 12.10 0.08 1.46 - 1.54 10.55 449
Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block
Description Opening as at Additions Disposals Closing as at Opening as at Additions Disposals Closing as at Asat As at
1 April 2023 31 March 2024 1 April 2023 31 March 2024 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Ccmmtl.'r Software - 0.24 - 0.24 - 0.00 - 0.00 0.24 =
Trademarks & Registrations - 4.33 - 433 - 0.07 - 0.07 4.25 -
Total = 4.57 - 4.57 - 0.08 - 0.08 4.49 -
Intangible assets under development :
Cost Amount
As at April 1, 2023 0.58
Additions 475
Capitalised duning the year 4.33
As at March 31, 2024 1.00
As at April 1, 2024 1.00
Additions 238
Capitalised during the year (2.35)
Adjustment during the year 1.53
As at March 3 1, 2025 -
1 ible Assets under Develop Aging Schedul
As at March 31, 2025
|Intangible  Assets under| Amount in.Cwof[I’ Total
Dévelopment for a period
Less than 1 yr. 1-2 yrs. 2-3 yrs.
Projects in Progress - - = 3
|Projects temporarily = - = =
Suspended
Intangible Assets under Develop Aging Schedul
As at March 31, 2024
Intangible Assets under A;"“"'“ i:iCW:P Total
Development or % period o
Less than 1 yr. 1-2 yrs. 2-3 yrs.
Projects in Progress 1.00 - 1.00
Projects temporarily = . = =
Suspended
Intangible Assets under Development Aging Schedule:
As at April 1, 2023
Intangible Assets under| MoOunt h‘CWll’ Total
Development for a period of
Less than 1 yr. 1-2 yrs. 2-3 yrs.
Projects in Pro, 0.58 - - 0.58
Projects temporarily - = % -
Suspended
Intangible assets under development - Intangible & C 1ses of trad, ks for which
&
2 o
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I
=7 _Non-current financial assets
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1,2023
Measured at amortised cost (Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Secunity deposits 018 - -
Total 0.18 - -
8 _Inventories
Particulars Asat As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023
At the lower of cost and net realisable value
Raw Material 230.73 37.78 -
Packing material 3380 742 -
Work-in-progress 797 5 5
Finished Goods 110.52 9.63 -
Total 383.02 54.83 -
Financial assets - current
9 Investments
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1,2023
Unguoted - At fair valur through profit and loss
Investment in mutual funds 957.45 352.77 -
Total 957.45 352.717 -
Investment in mutual funds As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 1,2023
Quoted - At fair valur through profit and loss No. of Units Amount No. of Units Amount No. of Units Amount
HDFC Liquid Fund Post IPO Colln Alc 6,764.62 340.93 7.509.02 35277 - -
HDFC Liquid Fund R(G) 6,067.13 305.78 - - -
ICICI Prudential Liguid Fund R(G) 81,708.25 310.73 - - E
‘Total 94,539.99 957.45 7,509.02 352.717 - -
Aggregate amount of quoted investments at market value 957.45 352.77 =
10 Trade Receivables
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1,2023
Trade receivables
- related parties* 22520 - =
- others - 5851 =
Total 22520 58.51 -
*refer note 35
Breakup of Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good 22520 5851 -
Total 22520 58.51 =

- No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.

- Trade or Other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member

- Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 45 days.

B el



Trade receivable ageing

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars Current but not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 months 6 months- 1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
{1} Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 22520 “ - 22520
{11) Undisputed Trade Receivables- considered doubtfi - - = =
(i11) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good 2 = = &
(1v) Dsputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful = a = =
Gross carrving amount 225.20 - - 22520
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Current but not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 months 6 months- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(1) Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 5851 - - 58.51
(11} Undisputed Trade Receivables- considered doubtfi - = = 2
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables lered doubtful = = = 5
Gross carrying amount 58.51 - - 58.51
As at April 1, 2023
Particulars Current but not due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 months 6 months- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(1) Undi 1 Trade receivables idered good - - - -
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables- considered doubtfi - - - -
(iti) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good - - - -
(iv) Di i Trade Receivabl idered doubtful - - - -
Gross carrying amount - - - -
There are no unbilled receivables, hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule.
11 Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1,2023
Balances with banks
On current accounts 0.01 2,68 20.25
Cash in hand 039 091 -
Total 0.40 3.60 2025
12 Income tax assets (net)
Particulars Asat As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1,2023
Advance income tax 19.52 -
Total 19.52 - -
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Other Current Assets

Particulars As at As at Asat

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Advances to suppliers 0.30 - =
Balances with government authoritics 16.99 1897 0.01
Prepaid assets® 3971 s -
Total 57.00 18.97 0.01
* includes INR 40.35 lacs faur value of financial gaurantee provided by holding company against the loan sanctioned
Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 1, 2023
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Authorised share capital
Equity shares of INR 10 each 5,000,000 500,00 5,000,000 500.00 5,000,000 500.00
Increase/{decrease) during the year - - - - - =
Closing balance 5,000,000 500.00 5,000,000 500.00 5,000,000 500.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid. 4,780,000 478.00 1,280,000 128.00 1,280,000 128.00
Right shares issued during the year - - 3,500,000 350.00 - -
Closing balance 4,780,000 478.00 4,780,000 478.00 1,280,000 128.00

(a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares :

The company has only one class of equity shares

distribution of all prefi 1al

having face value of INR 10/~ per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of the company, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company after
3o their shareholdi

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the company had issued 35 lacs New Equity Shares @ face value of INR 10 each under rights issue to existing shareholders on 04.12,2023 (ranks pan-passu in all respect with die existing Equity Shares of the Company)

(b) The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares: As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024 As at April 1,2023

Name of the Shareholder Num % Held Number of Shares % Held  Number of Shares % Held
Insecticides (India) Limited 4,7R0,000 100.00% - - - -
Rajesh Aggarwal - - 3,070,000 64.23% 1,070,000 83.59%
Nikunj Aggarwal - - 1,605,000 33.58% 105,000 820%
Sanskar Aggarwal - - 105,000 2.20% 105,000 8.20%
Total 4,780,000.00 100.00% 4,780,000.00 100.00% 1,280,000.00 100.00%
Details of shares held by promoters*

As at March 31, 2025

Promoter Name No. of Shares at the beginning of Change during the period No. of Shares at the end of % of total Shares % Change during the

the period the period period**

IInsecLicides (India) Limited - 4,780,000 4,780,000 100.00% 100.00%

Rajesh Aggarwal 3,070,000 (3,070,000) = = ~100.00%

Nikunj Aggarwal 1,605,000 (1,605,000) - - -100.00%

Sanskar Apgarwal 105,000 (105,000) - - -100.00%

4,780,000 - 4,780,000 100.00% 1

Details of shares held by promoters*

As at March 31, 2024 3’,
Promater Name No. of Shares at the beginning of]  Change during the period No. of Shares at the end of % of total Shares % Change during the 2)'\{

the period the period period** /
Rajesh Aggarwal 1,070,000 2,000,600 3,070,000 64.23% 186.92% C oA
Nikunj Aggarwal 105,000 1,500,000 1,605,000 33.58% 1428.57% P
Sanskar Aggarwal 105,000 - 105,000 2.20% - = \
1,280,000 3,500,000 4,780,000 100.00%
R

*Promoter here means promoter as defined in the Companies Act, 2013,

** ey hange shall be cc

d with respect to the

he beginning of the period or if 1ssued during the period for the first time then with respect to the date of 1ssue.
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Other equity
Reserves and surplus

Particulars Asat As at As at
Retained earnings

Opening balance (26,48) (6.35) (0.37)
Profit / (Loss) for the year 29228 (20.13) (0.20)
Transaction Cost of Issued Share Capital - - (5.78)
Closing balance 165.80 (26.48) (6.35)

Nature and purpose of reserves
R | earnings - Retained earnings is used to represent the accumulated net eamings of the Company after accounting for dividends or other distributions to the investors of the Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024 As at April 1,2023

Secured Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current
‘Working capital loan repayable on demand from bank * - 62,75 = = = <

- 62.75 5 = = =

(*) Cash credit facilities from banks are secured by hypothecation of all current assets viz. raw materials, finished goods, stores and spares, work in progress including stock in transit, book debts and movable fixed assets, both present and future of the Company. Further, these facilities
are also secured by the personal guarantee of certain promoter directors of the holding company (Hari Chand Aggarwal and Rajesh Kumar Aggarwal) & letter of fort from holding y.

Includes INR 49,682.80 fair value of financial guarantee provided by holding company against the loan sanctioned.

The above mentioned facilities are repayable on demand and carries an interest rate which is computed at Repo rate plus spread p.a. which was 6.50% plus 2.50% i.e. 9.00% during the year (March 31, 2024: Nil and March 31, 2023: Nil).

17 Lease liabilities

Particulars Asat As at As at
March 31, 2025* March 31, 2024 April 1,2023

Current 24.76 2276 -

Non-current 105.24 130,00 =

Total 130.00 152.76 -

*refer note 35

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

Particulars Asat As at As at
March 31, 2025* March 31, 2024 April 1,2023

Balance at April 1 15276 - -

Addition in lease liability - 161.68 -

Accretion of interest 11.87 5.50 -

Repayment of lease hability {34.62) (14.43) -

Balance at March 31 130.00 152.76 -

The maturity analysis of the lease liability is included in the refer note 39

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities 1s 8 5%, with maturity between 2023-2030

NG




18 Trade payables

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2025 March31,2024  April 1,2023
Trade pavables

- to related parties 9.70 - -

- to others 915.75 120.08 069
Total 925.45 120,08 0.69
Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1,2023

(A) total outstanding due to micro & small enterprises; and 11.46 - -

(B] total outstanding due to ereditors other than micro & small enterprises 913.99 120.08 0.69
Total 925.45 120.08 0.69

Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at_ March 31, 2025

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Tatal
11.46 - - - 1146

Particulars

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

|enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises

Total 925.45 - - - 925.45

913.99 - - - 913.99

Trade payables Ageing Schedule

As at March 31,2024
Pirtisilae Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
1entcmn'ses and small enterprises

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small

|enterprises
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises

Total 120.08 - - - 120,08

120.08 - - - 120.08

Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at April 1,2023

Outstanding for followi riods from due date of payment
Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Particulars

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
|enterprises
Total ding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small
|EHEE 15€5

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises

Total 0.69 & 5 - 0.69 % - (.:k E]




19 _Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1,2023
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Creditors for capital expenditure - 40.95 -
Employee Payables 6.46 412 -
Interest accrued on borrowings 0.02 - -
Financial guarantee obligation® 49.00 - -
Total 55.48 45.07 -

*refer note 35

20 Other current Liabilities

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1,2023

Statutory dues 362 1.69 -

Other payables

-Others - 2246 525

Total 3.62 24.16 525

21{a) Non currrent provisions

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 April 1,2023

Employee benefit provisions

Provision for gratuity* 1.08 - -

Provision for leave encashment 139 - -

Tatal 2.48 - -

*refer note 33

21(b) Currrent provisions

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023

Employee benefit provisions

Provision for gratuity® 0.00 - =

Provision for leave encashment 0.11 - -

Total 0.11 - -

*refer note 33
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23

24

Revenue from operations

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025% March 31, 2024

Sale of products

Finished goods 3,000.57 4958

Total Revenue from operations 3,000.57 49.58

*refer note 35

Disaggregated revenue information

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers by geography. The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts
how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of the revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors,

Revenues by Geography
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Within India 3,000.57 49.58
Total 3,000.57 49,58
Timing of r T ition
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
At a point in time
Sale of fimished goods 3,000.57 4958
Total 3,000.57 49.58
Trade receivables and Contract bal
Particulars Year ended Year ended As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1,2023
Trade receivables 225.20 58.51 -
Contract assets - - -
Contract habilities - - -
Total 225.20 58.51 -
Other income
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Gain on fair valuation of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss 3453 27
Gain on sale of mutual funds 516 5.04
Interest on bank deposits 0.06 -
Total 39.74 7.80
Cost of raw material and p t d
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Raw Material
Inventory at the beginning of the year 3778 -
Add: Purchases 2,487.01 2030
2,524.79 80.30
Less: inventory at the end of the year 230.73 3778
Cost of raw material consumed 2,294.07 42,51
Packing Material
Inventory at the beginning of the year 7.42 -
Add: Purchases 339.61 19.02
347.03 19.02
Less: inventory at the end of the year 33.80 7.42
Cost of packing material consumed 313.23 11.60

Total Cost of raw material and components consumed 2,607.30 54,11




25

26

27

28

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March31,205  March31,2024
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 110,52 9.63
Semi-finished goods 7.97 -
118.49 9.63
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 9.63 -
Semi-finished goods = .
9.63 %
Total (Increase)/Decrease in inventories (108.86) (9.63)
Emplovee benefit expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 5833 11.32
Contribution to provident and other funds* 3.50 0.66
Gratuity expense 1.09 -
Staff welfare expenses 0.28 -
Total employee benefit expenses 63.20 11.97
*refer note 33
Finance costs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on lease liabilities 11.87 5.50
Bank Charges 7.04 0.01
Interest on CC Limits 0.02 -
Interest (Others) 0.24 -
Total Finance costs 19.17 5.51
Depreciation and amortization expense
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 4.04 028
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 27.31 11.37
Amortisation on Intangible Assets 1.46 0.08
Total depreciation and amortization expense 32.82 11.72
29 Other expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 _March 31,2024
Manufacturing Expenses :
Freight inward 35.66 1.62
Power and fuel 233 0.24
Consumable items 0.72 -
Administrative & General Expenses : =
Audit fees {refer note 29(a)) 3.00 0.50
Rates and taxes 0.06 1.08
Legal and Professional Fees 7.21 3.39
Research & Development Expenses {refer note 29(b)) 1.69 -
Security expenses 1.63 -
Travelling and conveyance 1.87 0.56
Printing and Stationary 0.25 0.08
Amortization of Financial Guarantee Fees* 10.72 -
Insurance expenses 0.17 -
Repair and maintenance 1.53 0.11
Miscellaneous Expenses 4.03 0.15
Total other expenses 70.87 7.73

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories

*refer note 35




29 (a) Details of payment to auditors (excluding taxes)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statutory Audit Fees 3.00 0.50
Tax Audit Fees - -
In other capacity
Reimbursement of expenses & =
Total 3.00 0.50
29 (b) Research & Develop Expenditure
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024
(1) Revenue Expenditure :
(a) Consultancy charges 1.69 -
(ii) Capital Expenditure > =
Total 1.69 =

30

Income tax expense

This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense, shows how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible jtems.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March31,2005  March 31,2024
(a) Income tax expense
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year 52.32
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods = =
Total current tax expense 52.32 -
Deferred tax
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities 11.22 -
Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets - (3.90)
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) 11.22 (3.90)
Income tax expense 63.54 (3.90)
b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accountin income tax rate
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before income tax expense 355.82 (24.03)
Tax at the Indian statutory income tax rate of 17.16% 61.06 (6.05)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in
calculating taxable income:
Other non-deductible / (taxable) items 0.00 2.15
On account of permanenet differences 0.00 -
On account of rate difference 2.48 -
Income tax expense 63.54 (3.90)
Deferred tax asset / (liability)
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Particulars As at As at Year
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Unabsorbed Losses - 4.86 0.12
Lease liabilities 2231 26.21 -
Others (7.03) (0.70) -
Borrowings i
Right-of-use asset (21.11) (25.79) -
Property, plant and equipment (1.37) (0.57) -
Net deferred tax asset (liability) (7.20) 4.02 0.12
Charge/
(credit) to
. As at As at
Particulars Statement
i 5
April 1,2024 of Profit March 31, 202
and Loss
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (0.57) 0.81 (1.37)
Right-of-use asset (25.79) (4.69) (21.11)
Others (0.70) 6.33 (7.03)
Total deferred tax liabilities (27.06) 2.45 (29.51)
Deferred tax assets
Lease liabilities 26.21 3.90 2231
Carry forward losses 4.86 4.86 -
Total deferred tax assets 31.08 _877 22.31
Net deferred tax Asset 4.02 11.22 {7.20)
-




Charge/

Particulars At éi:::i:: gl
icu

i h 31,2024

April 01, 2023 of Profit Mare
and Loss

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - 0.57 (0.57)
Right-of-use asset - 25.79 (25.79)
Total deferred tax liabilities - 26.36 (26.36)
Deferred tax assets
Lease liabilities . (26.21) 26.21
Carry forward losses 0.12 (4.75) 4.86
Others . 0.70 (0.70)
Total deferred tax assets 0.12 (30.26) 30.38
Net deferred tax Asset 0.12 (3.90) 4.02

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net):

As at As at
March 31, 2025 rch 31, 2024
Opening balance as at April 1 4.02 0.12
Tax (income)/expense during the period 11.22 (3.90)
recognised in profit or loss : .
Closing balance as at March 31 (7.20) 4.02
31 Earnings per share
. As at Year ended
Ttz March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Profit for the year 292.28 (20.13)
Weighted average number of shares (Face value INR 10/- each) 4,780,000 2417978
(a) Basic earnings per share (INR) 6.11 (0.83)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (INR)* 6.11 (0.83)

*There are no dilutive potential equity shares.

AN\ e
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32 Significant estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the separate financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company, Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilitics may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal and other claims. By their nature,
contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of
contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events,

Taxes

There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
the tax determination is made. The assessment of probability involves estimation of a number of factors including future taxable income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre- tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risk specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a
variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - Company as lessee
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably
certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or lerminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either
the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within
its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate,

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

Where the Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is
the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company “would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates,

Revenue recognition - Estimating variable consideration for returns and volume rebates

The Company's contracts with customers include promises to transfer goods to the customers. Judgement is required to determine the transaction price for the contract,
The transaction price could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as rebates, incentives and cash discounts
ete. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period.

The amount of revenue recognised depends on whether the Company act as an agent or as a principal in an arrangement with a customer. The Company act as a
principal if the Company controls a promised goods or service before the Company transfers the goods or service to a customer and act as an agent if the Company’s

performance obligation is to arrange for the provision of goods or service by another party.
W.&*\
.
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33 (a) Defined contribution plan

During the year, the company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss: Year ended Year ended

March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Employer's contribution to Employee's Provident Fund (including admin charges) 342 -
Employer's contribution to Employee's State Insurance 0.08 0.01
Total 3.50 0.01
(b} Defined benefit plan

The company has a defined benefit for gratuity. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.
The company provides for the liability in its books of accounts based on the actuarial valuation by applying the Projected Unit Credit Method. The scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form of a
qualifying insurance policy.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit ok lig for the pany’s plan are shown below: Year ended Year ended As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 April 1,2023

Rate of discounting 6.72% - 3
Rate of salary increase 8.00% - -
8.00% pa. for all - -
Rate of employee tumover Service groups,
TALM 2012-14 5 3
Mortality rate during employment (Urban)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit ot ligation are as foll Year ended Year ended As at

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 1,2023

Opening defined benefit obligation % = =
Interest cost - - -
Current service cost 1.09 - =
Past service cost = - -
Benefits paid - e =
Actuarial (gain) / loss - = -

Due to change in Demographic assumptions - s =

Due to change in financial assumptions - 2 =

Due to change in experience - = =
Closing defined benefit obligation 1.09

Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets are as follows: Year ended Year ended As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 April 1,2023

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Interest income

Contributions by the employer

Benefits paid

Return on plan assets, excluding interest income
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and defined benefit obligation: Year ended Year ended As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024  April 1,2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation {1.09) = %
Fair value of plan assets = = .
Plan asset / {liability) (1.09) z -
Expenses recognised in profit and loss Year ended Year ended As at

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023

Net interest cost

Current service cost 1.0 - -
Past service cost - » x
Net expense 1.09 = 5
Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income Year ended Year ended As at

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023

Actuarial (gain) / loss on defined benefit obligation
Return on Plan Assets, excluding Interest Income
Total expense recognised in of other comprehensive income

Major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024
Total In % Tatal In %

Insurance fund
Cash And Cash Equivalents
Total




A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below: Year ended Year ended Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 1,2023

Defined benefit obligation (base) 1.09 - %
Change m discount rate
Increase by 1% (0.10) 2 -
Decrease by 1% 012 - =
Change in rate of salary increase
Increase by 1% on - #
Decrease by 1% (0,10} - -
Change in rate of employee turnover
Increase by 1% (0.05) - -
Decrease by 1% 0.05 - -
The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years: Year ended Year ended Asat

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 1,2023

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation

Within next 12 months 0.00 - -
Between | and 5 years 0.01 - -
Between 5 and 10 years 0.89 - -
More than 10 years 1.55 - -

(¢ ) Risk exposure

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Security Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the
mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of bers. As such, an i in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase
the plan's liability

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. 1f
the return on plan asset 13 below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively bal i mux of in in government securities, and other debt instruments,

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow, Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk

Mortality risk: Sinee the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk,

Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very less as insurance
companies have to follow stringent regulatory guidelines which mitigate risk
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341

3

First time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, are the first annual financial the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For years upto and including the year ended March 31, 2024,

the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the Companies (Ac g Standards) Rules, 2021, specified under section 133 and other relevant provisions of

the Companies Act ("previous GAAP" or “Indian GAAP")

As per Ind AS 101, First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, the company prepared and § d an opening Ind AS Bal Sheet at the date of transition to Ind AS's. This is the starting point for

accounting n accordance with Ind AS, The date of transition for the Company was April 1,2023 (ransition date'), Ind AS 101 requires that an entity's first Ind AS financial statements shall include at least three balance

sheets, two statements of profit and loss, two statements of cash flows and two statements of changes in equity and related notes, including comparative information for all st p 1.

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on March 31, 2025, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March

31,2024, as described in the summary of material accounting policies. In preparing these financial the Company's opening bal sheet was prepared as at April 1, 2023, the Company's date of transition to

Ind AS, This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its previous GAAP fi ial including the bal sheet as at April 1, 2023 and the financial statements as at and for

the year ended March 31, 2024,

According to Ind AS 101 the first Ind AS Financial St: must use 1 ition and principles that are based on standards and interpretations that are effective as at April 1, 2023 the date of first- time
ion of Financial 8 ding to Ind AS. These ing principles and principles must be applied retrospectively to the date of transition to Ind AS and for all periods presented within

the first Ind AS Financial Statements.

E ions and i lied

The company has not applied any exemptions available as per Ind AS 101 at the date of transition i.e. April 1, 2023,

The pany has prepared a liation of Bal sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss as reported under the previous GAAP to those compared as per Ind AS and the same is given in Note 32.2, 32.3 and 32.4
below. The company has also prepared a reconciliation of the amounts of total equity as reported under the previous GAAP to those compared as per Ind AS and the same is given in Note no. 32.4 below

Reconciliation of equity as at April 01, 2023 and March 31, 2024

Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2024 As at April 01, 2023 I
WURMBARE s Ind AS IadawGAAY o iionts Ind AS
(regrouped) (regrouped)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3845 - 3845 - = “
Investment Property (1) - 106.64 106.64 - 106.64 106.64
Right-of-use asset (it} - 15031 150.31 - = =
Intangible assets 4.49 = 4,49 - - -
Intangible assets under development 1.00 - 1.00 (.58 - 0.58
Deferred tax assets (net) (iif} 6.30 (2.28) 402 - 0.12 0.12
Total non-current assets 50.24 254.67 304.9 0.58 106.76 107,33
Current assets
Inventories 54.83 - 5483 - -
Financial Assets - £ e
(i) Investments i) 456.64 (103.87) 35277 106.64 (106.64) -
(1i) Trade receivables 58.51 - 58.51 - - -
(1if) Cash and cash equivalents 3.60 - 3.60 20.25 0.01 2026
Other current assets 18.97 (0.00) 18.97 0.01 (0.01) -0.00
Total current assets 592 54 (103.87) 488.67 126,90 (106.64) 20.26
Total assets 642.79 150.80 793.58 127.47 0,12 127,59
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 478.00 - 478.00 128.00 - 128.00
Other equity (iv) (2451) (1.96) (26.47) {6.46) 0.12 (6.35)
Total equity 453.49 (1.96) 451.53 121.54 0.12 121.65
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Financial Liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities () - 130.00 130.00 - z =
Total non-current liabilities - 130.00 130.00 - - -

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(1) Lease habilities (it} - 22.76 22.76 - 3 *
(i1} Trade Payables
(A} total outstanding due of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and - - - ¥ = =

(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 120.08 - 12008 0.69 - 0.69
enterprises,
(1i1) Other financial liabilities 45.07 - 45.07 - > 2
Other current liabilities 2416 - 2416 5.25 - 525
Total current liabilities 189.30 22.76 212.0 5.94 - 5.94
Total liabilities 189.30 152.76 341.06 5.94 - 594

Total equity and liabilities 642,79 _150.80 79 127.47 0.12 127.59




KAEROS RESEARCH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(ANl amounts in INR in lacs, unless mentioned otherwise)

343 Reconciliation of total Comprehensive income for the vear ended March 31, 2024:

344

i

(i)

(iii

{iv

Particulars Note No. Indian GAAP Ind AS Ind AS
(regrouped) Adj
Hevenue
Revenue from operations 49.58 - 49.58
Other income (1) 504 .77 781
Total income 54.62 wn §1.39
Expenses
Cost of raw material and companents consumed 54.11 {0.00) 3411
Changes in inventories of fnished goods {9.63) {0.00) (9.63)
Employes benelits expense 11.97 (0.00) 1197
Finance Cosls (i) 0.01 550 5.51
Drepreciation and amortization expense (i) 0.35 1137 11.72
Other expenses (i) 22.16 {14.43) 1.73
Total expenses 78.98 144 8141
Profit before tax (24.36) 0.33 (24.02)
Tax expense:
1. Current tax = s =
i1, Current tax adjustment related to carlier vears - -
i. Deferred tax {eredit) (iif) (6,30) 240 (3.90)
Profit for the year {18.06] (2.07) (20.11)
Total comprehensive Income/loss for the year (18.06) {2.07) (20.11)

Reconcilintion of total equity as at April 1, 2023 and March 31, 2024:

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2024 April 1,2023
Other Equity as per Previous GAAP (24.51) (6.46)
Adjustments through Profit and Loss; (1.96) 012
~ Interesy on Lease liahilites {ii) (5.50) -

- Depreciation an Right-of-use asseis (i) (11.37) -

- Reversal of rent charged under previows GAAP on adoprion of Ind AS 116 (1) 14.43 -

- Net gatr on fair value changes of investment (i) imn -

- Deferred tax effect (iif) (2.28) 012
Net Other Equity as per Ind AS (26.47) (6.35)

(This space has heen left blank intentionaliv)
Footnates to the reconcilistion of equity as at April 01, 2023, March 31, 2024 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Investments and Investment property:

a) Under Indian GAAP, i propertics was classified under 1 As per [nd AS 40, i
property of INR 106,64 lacs

b) Under previous GAAP, all imvestments were stated at cost or fair value, whichever is lower, Under Ind AS, investment in Mutual Funds have been measared at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), Fair value
changes of mutual funds measured at FVTPL amounting to TNR. 278 lacs for the year ended 315t March 2024 are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

shall be d under separate head, Therefore, it has been 1 from i it

Leases:

Under Indian GAAP, the pavments made under operating leases are charged to the statement of profit and loss. Under Ind AS 116, a lessee applies a single ition and h for all leases and recognises
lease liabilitics 1o make lease payments and right-of-usc assets representing the right 1o use the underlying assets. Al the date of iransition to Ind AS, the Company had no lease agreements. As per Ind AS 116, lease liabilities
are measurcd al the present value of the ining lease i i using the lessee’s incremental bormowing rate at the date of transition to Ind AS. Right-of-use assets are measured at an amount equal to the lease
Isabsility. Further, impact of interest accretion is shown under finance cost

As a result ol sbove adjusiment:

a) Right of usc assels increased by amounting to INR. 150.31 lacs (Apnil |, 2023: INR Nil}

b) Lease liability increased by INR 152.76 (April 01, 2023: INR Nil}

) Renl expenses decreased by INR 14,43 Tncs (April 01, 2023: Nil).

Total profit and loss for the vear ended March 31, 2024 has decreased by INR 2,45 lacs and total equity decreased by is INR 2.45 lacs (April 01, 2023: INR Nil)

Deferred tax

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax pecounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period, Ind AS 12 requires entities to aceount for
defierred Laxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temparary differences between the carrving amount of an assets or liability in the balance sheel and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has
resulted in recognistion of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP.

Total profit and loss for the year cnded March 31, 2024 has decreased by INR 2.28 lacs and total equity decreased by is INR 2.28 lacs (April 01, 2023: INR1I JB08.48)

Retained Earnings
Retained Enrnings has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments and the same is given in Note no. 324 abave

(This space has been left blank tntentionally)




KAEROS RESEARCH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All mmounts in INR in lacs, unless mentiosed otherwise)

35 Related party transactions
A, Names of i d related party

#) Holding Company
1. Insecticides {India) Limited

b} Key Management Personnel (KMP)

1. Mukesh Kumar - Director {Ressgned on 24/04/2024)

2. Sanjay Vots - Diirector

3. Andl kumas Croyal - Director {Appointed on 2404/2024)

B, Tramsactions during the year with related parties:-

Year ended Yeur ended Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Hulding Company
Insecticides {Indun} Limited
Sabes of Finished Goods® 3,5840,66 -
Purchase of goods® 20647 - E
Lease rent pawd* 40.85 - -
Power and fuel expenses® 274 - i
Rembursament of expenses 098 - ~
Corperate Chaamnbee Foes® S4.00 - -
Corporate Gussranbes 5,000 00
€. Balance owtstanding with related partios:-
Insecticides (India) Limited
Trmade Receivables 22520 - -
Trade Payobles .70 - =
Financis! guarantee chligationd 49,00 -
Corporute Guarailee 5,000.00

#Carpurate gaurantine ol INK. 5000 lacs has hoen issued by Insecticides (Indin) Limited whech has been subemitted to TCTCT bank it the sunction of working capital demand boan of INI 5,000 bues with guarantee fees for INR 50 lucs
#ln addition 10 the uforesaid related party tmnsactions, certain disectors of e holding compay (Mr Han Chand Aggarwal and Mr. Rajesh Kumar Aggarwal) have given teir personal guarmtee for the working capital ficilitics availed by the Company

D Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:-
The sales to related parties are made on terms equivalent W those that previdl in arm's lenglh trunssctions. Outstanding balances at the year-end ase imsecured and interest free. There have been no gannniees provided or received for any related party reccivables, This sssessment is
undestuken each fnancial year through examiming the finaneial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operstes
*GET is included in the abave values

36 Falr value measurements

As at March 31, 2025 As ai March 31, 2024

As at April 1, 2023

(i) Financial instruments by categary Note FVTPL FVTOCL Amortbed cost FVTrL FVTOCL Amurtised cost EVTPL FYTOCL Amortised cost
a) Finuncial assets - Non-current

Secunty depasits 7 - - 018 - + - = &
b) Financial assets - Current

[nvestments in martual fusds b 057.45 - 3T 2 =

Cash and cash equivalents " - - ] a = 160 =

Trade Recervibles 1t - - 22520 - - 58.51 -

Total finuncial asscts 957.45 - 2578 I5LTT - 62 10 - -

«) Fimancial labilities - Non-carreat

Lease liahalitics 17 - - 105,23 - - 130.00 -

d) Finuncinl lnbilities - Carreat

Borrowings 16 - = G275 - - - - =

Lease lishilitics 7 - - .76 - - 7% - -

Trade paynbles 8 - - 0543 - - 120.08 - -

Credidors for captal expenditure 19 - - - - - 4095 - -

Financial gusrantoe obligation W = - 49,00 = = = = -

Enterest accrued on bomrowings 19 - - o2 - i3 - - -
Employe payables - 647 = - 4.12 - - =
Total financial liabilities - - 1,173.68 - - 31798 - - 69




(ii) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the j and esty made in d
(@} recognised and measured at fair value and

(b) measured at amontised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements,

ining the fair values of the financial instruments that are

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels ! ibed under the g dard. An expl. of each level follows underneath the table.

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 3], 2024 As at April 1, 2023
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
disclosed
Financial assets
Financial assets at FYTPL
Investment in mutual funds 95745 - - 352.77 - - - -
Financial asscts at amortised cost
Security deposits - 018 - - - - -
Cash and cash cquivalents - 0,40 - - 360 - 2026
Trade Receivables " 22520 = - __585) - -

95745 22578 = 35277 62,10 - - 2026
Financial liabilities at amartised cost
Borrowines - 6275 - - - - -
Lease liabilities - 129.99 - - 152.76 - - =
Trade pavables - 925 45 - - 12008 - - 0.69
Creditors for capital expenditure - - - - 4095 - - -
Emplovee pavables = 6.47 - - 412 - - -
Financial guaranice obligation - 49.00 - - - - - -
Interest accrued on borrowings - 002 - - - - - -
5 1,173.68 = = 317.90 X < 0.69
There have been no wansfers between Level | and Level 2 during the period,
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price
a5 at the reporting period.
L.:vtl1:Th:fair"almufﬁnmiulilwmmsthummlmdedhmw(ivcml'kﬂ{rurmmplc.mdedbmds, h derivatives) is ds ined using valuati i which the use of of ble market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
Level 3: If one or more of the sienificant inputs is not based on observable market data. the instrument is included in level 3.
(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024 As at April |, 2023
Note Carryi t ir value i i i ount ir valie
Financial assets
Financial assets at FVTPL
Investment in mutual funds 9 957.45 957.45 sam 35277 - P
Financial assets at amortised cost
Security deposits 7 018 0.1% - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 11 0.40 040 3.60 3.60 2026 20.26
Trade Receivables 1o 25.20 5851 5851 = =
L1833 KT T 1YY 7 41487 026 3026
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
nes 16 6275 62.75 # - -
Lease liabilities 17 129.99 129.99 15276 152.76 - -
Trade pavables 18 92545 92545 120.08 120.08 069 069
Creditors for capital expenditure 19 - - 4095 40,95 - -
Emplovee pavables 19 647 6.47 412 412 - -
Financial guarantee obligation 19 49.00 49.00 - - - -
Interest accrued on borrowings 19 0.02 002
1,173.68 1,173.68




Financial risk management objcesives and policies

The Comnpany ‘s pincijal Nrancial liabilitics comprise trde and other payebles, The main purposs of thes fnsmcial labilities is to finmee the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial nssets security deposits, trade receivables and cash and
cash equivalents.

The Company has formulated the Risk Management Policy whose objedsve 15 1o ensure sustninnble busines expansion with stability, and to promete an upbent approach in nak mansgement process by climinating sk [he exposure of the Company 1o These
risks is explained &5 below:

Risk X ising from M Munagement

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade seocivables and finncinl et Apeing onalysis Dhversification of hank depasits, credit Hinits
wpeasured gl mmortised cost.

A) Credit risk

Cradit risk is the risk et counterparsy will not meet its abligations under o financial insirusent o custonser contract, Jeading to o financial less. The Company 15 expesed 1o credit risk from its operatig activities (primarily trade recetvables) and from its
Financing activitics, including deposits with banks and security deposts,

(i) Credit risk management

1) Trade recelvables

Custonver credit risk is managed by cach business unil subject 1o the Company's established policy, procadures and control relafing to customer credit risk 35 o ding customer receivables are regubarly i The Company periodicall
asscsses the fimancial reliability of customers, taking inko account the fimancial condition, carrent economic trends, and analysés of historical duts and ageing of sccounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly. New castomers are analysed
individually for credieworthiness hefore the Company's standard payment and deli erms [Tered. Sube fmi lished for each d reviewed dicall

The Company considers the probability of defili upon initinl recognition of asset and whether there bas been & mignificant increase m credit nsk on an ongoing basis thmaughout ench reporting period. Tt considers available reasannble and supportive frwand-
looking i i the following indi are i

o) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in busmess, financial or ecopomic cobitsons that are achial

b) Significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the costomer, including chonges in the payment status of citstomer in the company,

1) Financtal Instruments and cash deposits
Credi. risk from balimoes with banks is manages) by the Company's snegenent in sconrdance with the pobicy of the Compuny. Counterpurty credit Fnits are reviewed by the Company's management on an amuial basis. The Himits fire: st te miinise the
concentrution of risks and therefore mitigate fmancial loss through counterpanty's potential filure (o make poyments,

B) Liguidiry risk

Liquishity risk i5 the risk tht the Compauy will not be sble to meet it financial obligations as they fill due. The Company”s approach to mannging liquidity is o ensure, as far s possibibe, that it will always have sufficient fiquidity to meet its lnbilities when
due, under both normml and stresseal conditions, without meuing micceptable losses or risking dunnge 1o the Compay's repusation. The Company manuges liquidity risk by maintsimng adegieste reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
Alows and matching the matority profiles of the finacial assets and liabilities.

The table below wmmarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Particulars ‘Within 1 vear Between 1 and 3 years Mare than 5 years Total
INR INR INR
Year ended March 31, 2025
Bosrowings 62,75 - - 62,75
Trade payables 92545 . - L5 L
Lense Libilities 62 12118 - 153.80
Emploves payubles LEL] = - 6,46
Fmancial guarantee ohligation 49,00 . - 49.00
Intesest accrued on borrowings 2 - - o002
1,076.31 12118 - 1,199.48
The table below summrarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial linbilities bused o contractual undiscomted pavments:
Particulars Within 1 year Between 1 and 5§ vears More thun 5 vears Total
INR INR INR
Year ended March 31, 2024
Trade payables 120,08 - - 12008
Lease Linhilities. M6 138.49 17.31 190.42
Creditors for capitnl expendituse 40,95 - - A0.95
Employee pyables 412 - - 412
19976 138.49 17.31 355.56
The table below summari: turity profile of the Company’s | liabilities bascd on contractunl andi ted [LH
Particalars ‘Within 1 vear Between | and 5 years Mare thun 3 vears ‘Tatal
INR INR INR
As ut April 1, 2023
Trade payables 10,69 = - .68
"2 - = D62

N:1'
™ pelhi.




a)

b)

Undrawn borrowing facilities
At 31 March 2023, the company had available INR 40.946.38 lacs (31 March 2024: Rs. Nil, | April 2023 INR Nil) of undrawn committed barrowing facilitics

C) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Mows of a financial instrument will uctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Compamy s exposure 1o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company 's debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The Company’s policy is to keep between 40% and 60% of its borrowings at fixed rates of interest, excluding borrowings that relate o discantinued operations. The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolic of fised and variable rate loans and
borrowings keeping in view of current market scenario, Company's fixed rate borrowings are not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fuctuste becouse of a change in market interest rates. As at Mareh 31,
2024, the exposure to interest rate risk due to variable interest rate borrowings amounted to INR 63 25 lacs (March 31, 2024; Nil, April 1, 2023: Nil}.

Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Compamy’s borrowings (o interest rate changes at the end of the reparting period are as follows:

Particulars As at Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1,2023
Short term borrowings 62.75 - -
Total 62.75 - =
Sensitivity Impact on profit before tax
Particulars As at As at As at
Mar: 1 ril 1, 2023
Interest rate - increase by 1% (0.63) - -
Interest rate - decrease by 1% 063 = &
Segment information
Opuuinguynmlsmrqnwdinammaomim»ﬂhﬂuintuuainporﬁngpmidedmﬂwdrbfupﬂnﬁughdsiwmlhcr.Themmmyisinvulwdinwunymmrd-nd' | for agro-chemicals of all type including fertili Micro -
ients, pesticides, msecticid inary, i k feeds, feed fish feeds, etc. and to manufacture and trading of all types of insecticides , hence there is one operating segment.
Entity wide disclosures as applicable to the Company are mentioned below:-
a) Infe ion about thical areas:
Revenue from customers Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within India 3,000.57 4958
Total revenue 3,000.57 4958
b) R from Major C 5 R from I icides India Limited is amounting to 10% or more of Company’s total revenue.
Leases
The Company has | for factory ises. The factory premises have lease terms between | 1o 7 vears,
Amounts recognized in profit and loss
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-usc assets (Refer Note 28) 2731 1137
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer Note 27) 1187 5.50
Total 3918 16.87
Extension and termination options
The Company has leasc that include ion and options. These options are negotisted by management and align with the Company’s business needs, Manag ises significant jud, in d ining whether these ion and
ination options are bly certain to be ised. The Company has idered all the lease p relating to periods following the exercise date of extension options, where such option is available with the Company in the caleulation of lease
liabilities. The Company has determined that it is not bly certain that nation options attached to lease contracts will be exercised. Therefore, such disclosures are not applicable,
-
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(a)

(b

Information as required to be funished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the vear ended March 31, 2025 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have
been identified on the basis of information available with the Company :

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April [, 2023

Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered under MSMED Act:

Principal 037 - -

Wi 022 - =

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with amounts of the

pavments made to the supplicr bevond the appointed day during each accounting Year.

Principal Paid during FY 129.04 - -
Interest Paid during FY 3 . -

The amount of interest due and payables for the period of delay in making payment (Which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year ) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, = 5 _

The amount of Interest accured and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year.

Accounting year ended 3 st March 2025 022 2 &
Accounting vear ended 31st March 2024 - = .
Asat st April 2023 i

Themmmofﬁmlummmmmdmmdpwabkmmlhemmmmulsachdm:wlwﬂmmt 022

dues a5 above actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disall as a ded ise under section

23 of the MSMED Act 2006, = c

Changes in ing policies and discl

New and ded dards and i

(i) Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide nolification dated 12 August 2024, under the C ies (Indian A ing Standards) A di Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after | April 2024
Ind AS 117 I Contracts is a comprehensive new ing dard for o ing ition and ni, [ 1on and discl Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 117 applies to all types of insurance contracts, regardless of the type of
entities that issue them as well as to certam g and financial i with discreticnary participation features; a few scop plions will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model, supplemented by

* A specific ad: ion for with direct icipation features (the vanable fee approach)

= A simplified approach (the premium allocats h) mainly for short-duration contracts

The application of Ind AS 117 does not have material impact on the Company's separatc financial statements a¢ the Company has not entered any contracts in the nature of insurance contracts covered under Ind AS 117,

(i) Amendments to Ind AS 116 Leases — lgaulﬂbﬁl}'lnlsmandlﬂ.u&uk
The MCA notified the Companies (Indian A i dards) Second 4 Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leascback.

for annual reporting

The amendment specifies the i that a seller-ls uses in i ﬂnlr.usclulu!rwmgmunl:undbuebukmsl:tm,lum:ﬂ:uﬂu-lmdosmtmuopmemmmmnrﬂtgmulusthuwlmwﬂmnghnfmumﬂu is
pcnodabemmngenarlﬁﬂlAprdZDNuﬁmbeapplwd pectively to sale and leaseback entered into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 116, The amendments do not have a material impact on the Company”s financial statements.

Standards issued but not yet effective

mfmm}'mlﬂﬁrw&nﬁmm:wmm.wmIro:ﬂ‘mn-efomnnun]puwdsbeginningmualhw!AprilZOM.TheCmpwhumurlytﬁwl&dm_\- dard, i ion or ds that has been issued but is not yet effective.
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C i and

Capital and other commitments
As at March 31, 2025 the Company has di i &

Capital management

to the value of Nil (March 31, 2024 Nil, April 1, 2023 )

For the purpose of the Company s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securitics premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company s capital n isto holder value,
The Company its capital and makes adj in light of changes in i ditions and the reg of the financial . To mat or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital to sharcholders or issue
new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net dobt divided by total capital plus net debl. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and b g8 (including current and lease liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents and bank balances,
The Net Gearing Ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1,2023
Giross Debt 19274 152.76 -
Cash and Marketable Securities 040 3.60 2026
Net Debt (A) 19234 149.16 -20.26
Total Equity (B) 74381 45153 12165
Net Gearing Ratio (A/B) 25.86% 33.03% 0.00%
No changes were made in the obj . policies of p for i capital during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March, 2024 and as at | April 2023,
Ratios
Ratio Numerator Denominator M‘m:;:l A;“ % Change Remarks
March 31,2025 |  March31,2024
Current Ratio (Current assets Current liability 1.53 230 -34% | Due to increase in trade payables. Also, company has
taken a cash credit limit during the year.
Debi-Equity Ratio Total debt (including lease Total Sharcholders’ Equity 0.26 034 -23% | Company has taken cash credit limit during the vear,
Debt Serviee Coverage Ratio Earnings for debt service Debt service = Interest & 9.94 (0.20) -5041% | Company is in profit during the current year while
= Net profit after taxes + Non-cash Lease Payments + Principal company was in loss in last year
perating (Depreciati Rep
Return on Equity Ratio Net Profits after taxes — Preference Average Shareholder’s Equity 48.90% -L11% =448 7% |Company is in profit during the current year while
Dividend company was in [oss in Last vear,
Inventory tumover Ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 11.91 049 2314% | Due to increase in operations during the vear,
company’s cost of material consumed has increased.
Trade Receivables tumover Ratio Net credit sales = Gross credit sales - |Average Trade Receivable 2115 169 1148% | Due to increase in operations during the year,
sales retum company's revenue from operations and trade
receivables have increased.
Trade payables turnover Ratio Net credit purchases = Gross credit Average Trade Payables 541 .64 229% | Due to increase in operations during the year,
purchases - purchase retun pany's purck and trade payables have
increased,
Net capital tumover Ratio Net sales = Total sales - sales return Working capital = Current 526 0.18 2835% | Due to increase in operations during the year,
assets — Current liabilitics company's revenue from operations have increased.
Net profit Ratio Net Profit Net sales = Total sales - sales 9.74% -40.61% ~124% | Company is in profit during the current year while
relum company was in loss in last year.
Return on capital emploved Eamings before interest and taxes Capital Employed = Tangible 46.08% -4.10% -1224% | Company is in profit during the current vear while
Net Worth + Total Debt + company was in loss in last year.
Deferred Tax Lisbility
Return on investment Income on investment Investment 4.15% 221% £8% | Company’s invelsments in mutual funds has
appreciated during the year,




45 Other Amendments as per Sch 111 of the Companies Act, 2013

a) The Company does not have any benami property, nor any proceeding has been initiated o pending against the Company for holding any benami property.
b) The Company has not traded or mvested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial vear.
<} The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including forcign entitics (1 diaries) with the und ding that the | iary shall
(1) direatly o indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in amy manner wh by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or
(i) provide any guarantee, seeurity or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
d) The Company has not received any fund from any person{s) or entity{ics), including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing o otherwise) that the Company shall:
(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner wh by or on behalfl of the funding party (ultlimate beneficiarics) or
(i) provide any guarantee, security or the fike on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
<} The Company does not have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, scarch or survey or any ather relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961).
1) The Company has complicd with the number of lavers preseribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of lavers) Rules, 2017,
&) The Company is not declared wilful defaulier by any bank or financials mstitution or other lender during the year.
h) The Company does nol have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
1) The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was obtained.
1) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress are held in
the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.
k) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,
1) The Company does not have any loan or advance in the nature of loans granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related partics {as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, that arc:
(&) repayable on demand; or
(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment

46 Audit Trail
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new req for companics under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by € panies (A ts) Amend Rules, 2021 requiring ies, which uses i fl for maintaining its books
anLlewmb’smhmowﬂingsoﬂmwhjchhulfealmofrwordingwdhmlufmmdwwymmum.cmah'nslnded.ilIogol'unchdmgcmdeinﬂmbmhofmnlhqgwirhdeﬂcﬂm:mhdmwwﬂcmdcuﬂmmmg!hﬂﬂwwdhuwlambedﬁahbd.Tho
Company has enabled the audit trail{edit logs) facility of the g software used for mai of all i mds.Hmm.mdjltmil(edkIogs)mmabledauppdiurimk'vclmmumlwmmﬁn&%wwwﬂlmaﬁyimmERPpufmmudmmdimimpm
on space utilisation,

47 Subsequent event
There were no significant adjusting events that i suk 1o the reporting period other than the event disclosed in relevent notes

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the standalonc financial statements.
Summary of material accounting policics 12
Notes to Financial Statement 347
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